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APPEARANCES : 

THOMAS FOLEY, NeuStar, Inc. ,  NPA Re l i e f  Planner, 1120 

Vermont Avenue, N.W., Sui te 550, Washington, DC 20005, 

appearing on behalf o f  the North American Numbering Plan 

Admi n i  s t r a t i  on. 

SUSAN MASTERTON and SANDY KHAZRAEE, 1313 B1 a i  rstone, 

Tal lahassee, F lor ida 32316, appearing on behalf o f  Sprint. 

EARL POUCHER, Of f i ce  o f  Publ ic Counsel, 111 W. Madison 

Sui te 812, Tallahassee, F lor ida 32399, appearing on behalf o f  

the publ ic .  

C .  LEE FORDHAM, F lor ida Publ ic Service 

Commi ss i  on, D i  v i  s ion o f  Legal Services , 2540 Shumard 

Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, F lo r ida  32399-0870, 

appearing on behalf o f  the Commission S t a f f .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Good evening. We' 11 c a l l  t h i s  

iear ing t o  order. Counsel, read the notice. 

MR. FORDHAM: Pursuant t o  not ice published May 

2001, t h i s  time and place has been set f o r  a pub l i c  hear 

jocket number 000604-TL, request f o r  review o f  proposed 

3rd, 

ng i n  

lumbering plan r e l i e f  f o r  the 941 area code f o r  the purposes 

set f o r t h  i n  the not ice.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well 1 take appearances. 

MR. POUCHER: E a r l  Poucher, Of f i ce  o f  Pub1 i c  Counsel , 

Tal 1 ahassee. 

MR. FORDHAM: Lee Fordham, Legal S t a f f  o f  the Public 

Service Commission. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Great. Good evening. My name i s  

Leon Jacobs. I am chairman o f  the Flor ida Public Service 

zommission, and l e t  me welcome you t o  our hearing t h i s  evening. 

de're going t o  consider proposed numbering r e l i e f  f o r  the 941 

area code. Some o f  you may be a b i t  disconcerted by the 

screen. Don't worry. We' l l  have a presentation a t  the 

beginning o f  our meeting, but  a t  the end o f  t h a t  presentation 

that  w i l l  be removed, so don ' t  l e t  t ha t  bother you. 

Let me f i r s t  introduce my colleagues here. To my 

r i g h t  i s  Commissioner Terry Deason, and t o  my l e f t  i s  

Commissioner Michael Palecki . We're a panel o f  three o f  f i v e  

Commissioners, and we're going t o  hear customer and publ ic  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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input tonight on the matters in this docket. Before we get 
started, let me introduce to you Mr. Tom Foley. He is with the 
Vorth American Numbering Plan Administration. They administer 
the numbers throughout the country. He is going to give us a 
brief presentation. 

MR. FOLEY: Okay. Thank you, Commissioner Jacobs and 
other Commissioners. My name is Tom Foley, I'm an NPA relief 
planner with the North American Numbering Plan Administration. 

North American Numbering Plan Administration or NANPA 
is an organization that was created back in the late '90s. In 
1995, Federal Communications Commission took an important step 
to foster competition. In doing this, they adopted a new mode 
under which the numbers would be administrated in the country 
for all the carriers that use them. 

The FCC formed the North American Numbering Council 
in order to develop some guidelines. These guidelines are the 
guidelines under which we, the North American Numbering Plan 
Administration, operate and under which the telephone companies 
and communications companies obtain their numbering resources. 

Initially, Lockheed Martin IMS was named as the North 
American Numbering P1 an Administrator back in 1987. Subsequent 
to that, because of some conflicts o f  interest, Lockheed Martin 
IMS spun off its communication industry system segment and on 
November 30th, NeuStar, Incorporated, my current employer , was 
formed. We administer the North American Numbering Plan. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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The primary respons ib i l i t i es  o f  NANPA when i t  comes 

to  r e l i e f  planning i s  we take a look a t  and determine the need 

for  area code r e l i e f ;  i n  other words, adding addi t ional  area 

zodes i n  a pa r t i cu la r  area. We i d e n t i f y  the t iming o f  t h a t  

r e l i e f ;  i n  other words, when i s  t h a t  pa r t i cu la r  area code going 

to  exhaust. 

The r e l i e f  planner takes a lead. We compare several 

Dptions t o  present t o  the indust ry  a t  an indust ry  meeting and 

f a c i l i t a t e  the indust ry  t o  come t o  consensus on a plan t o  

recommend t o  the Publ ic Service Commission. Once tha t  i s  done, 

de compile and f i l e  a l l  the necessary documents and supporting 

information t o  the F lor ida Publ ic Service Commission, which 

began t h i s  docket t h a t  we're i n  r i g h t  now and, u l t imate ly ,  when 

de receive approval f o r  some type o f  r e l i e f ,  we coordinate the 

i n i t i a l  industry a c t i v i t i e s  t o  ensure t h a t  t he re ' s  a smooth 

t r a n s i t i o n  t o  any plan t h a t  i s  ordered. 

There are three basic types o f  r e l i e f  t ha t  are used 

i n  providing addi t ional  numbering resources. The f i r s t  one, o f  

course, i s  the geographic s p l i t .  That 's  where the ex i s t i ng  

number plan area or  area code i s  d iv ided i n t o  two or  more 

separate geographic areas. 

The second i s  an overlay. The overlay i s  when a 

second area code i s  added t o  the same geographic area as the  

ex i s t i ng  area code. 

And the t h i r d  one t h a t ' s  used i s  a boundary 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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realignment. That i s  not used very of ten.  It i s  very 

j i f f i c u l t  t o  administer because o f  c o n f l i c t s  w i t h  d i a l i n g  

resources and things l i k e  t h i s ,  but  i t  i s  avai lab e, i f  

necessary. Or we can use some combinations o f  those three t o  

provide the best so lu t ion  f o r  the area. 

Some a t t r i b u t e s  f o r  the s p l i t  options are as fol lows: 

de provide a s p l i t ,  i t  keeps i t  a s ing le geographic area. It 

may minimize confusion. 

generally understood o f  providing area code re1 i e f .  

I t ' s  the t r a d i t i o n a l  way and i t ' s  

S p l i t s  requi re  an area code change f o r  about h a l f  o f  

the population. And i f  we s p l i t  three way, such as l i k e  they 

d i d  i n  south Georgia t h a t  requires an area code change f o r  

two- th i rds o f  the  population. 

Geographic spl i t s  do, however, permit 7-  d i g i t  1 oca1 

d i a l i n g  t o  remain w i t h i n  the area code. Stat ionery, business 

cards, advert i  s i  ng media, e t  cetera , containing a 10 - d i g i t  

phone number would need t o  be changed on ha1 f o f  the - - f o r  

h a l f  o f  the customers. Future s p l i t s  w i l l  continue t o  reduce 

the geographic s ize  o f  the area even fa r ther .  

I n  an overlay, there 's  more than one area code 

serving the same geographic area, and t h i s  may provide some 

confusion. I t ' s  a f a i r l y  new concept, and r i g h t  now about 110 

area codes i n  the country use t h i s .  

An overlay w i l l  not require any e x i s t i n g  customers t o  

change t h e i r  phone number. It does, however, require the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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j i a l i n g  o f  10 d i g i t s  on a l l  l oca l  c a l l s .  There's no need t o  

Oevise stat ionery,  advert is ing mater ia l ,  e t  cetera, unless i t  

zontains only the 7 - d i g i t  phone number, must now contain an 

area code. An overlay w i l l  end fu r ther  shrinkage on the 

geographic s ize o f  the area code, because subsequent re1 i e f ,  

should there be any needed, i s  usual ly  another overlay. 

The current 941 area code or  NPA encompasses Lee, 

Sarasota, C o l l i e r ,  Manatee, and p a r t  o f  Monroe Counties. The 

current conf igurat ion o f  t h i s  area code was formed when the 863 

area code was s p l i t  o f f  from 941 i n  2000, about a year ago. 

NANPA i s  current ly  p ro jec t ing  the exhaust date o f  the 

f i r s t  quarter o f  2003 f o r  t h i s  area code. As you can see, 

we're i n  the prel iminary stages o f  t h i s .  The Commissioners 

w i l l  explain t h e i r  ro le ,  e t  cetera, i n  t h i s .  The current 941 

NPA, as I said, was born about a year ago on May 22nd, 2000. 

The i n i t i a l  - -  the i n v i t a t i o n  t o  the planning meeting was given 

out May 18th. The industry met i n  Ju l y  o f  2000 t o  come t o  

consensus on a way t o  provide the r e l i e f  i n  the 2003 time 

frame, and the f i l i n g  was made September 18th, 2000, w i th  the 

Pub1 i c Servi ce Commi ss i  on. 

There were four d i f f e r e n t  a1 ternat ives considered by 

the indust ry  i n  the industry meeting. The f i r s t  one was a 

d is t r ibu ted  overlay. And as you see here, t h i s  i s  a map o f  the 

current 941 area code. And what would happen i s  the overlay 

would cover - - a new area code would cover t h a t  e n t i r e  area. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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(ere 's a map w i th  the counties shown. The projected l i f e  o f  

;his before any addit ional r e l i e f  would be needed i s  about 

9 ght years. 

The second a l te rna t ive  was a geographic s p l i t ,  and 

;his i s  along what i s  known as a LATA l i n e ,  a Local Access 

rransport Area, i s  what i t  stands fo r ,  and i t ' s  a d i v i s i o n  the 

:elephone companies use. And tha t ,  bas ica l ly ,  was between 

lenice and Englewood and North Port,  Port Char o t t e  telephone 

zompany exchanges, and you can see on a county map 

ipproximately where tha t  l i n e  i s .  The l i f e  o f  t h i s  NPA r e l i e f ,  

!rea "B" would have a l i f e  o f  s i x  years and Area "A" would be 

jpproximately ten years. 

The second a1 te rna t i ve  considered was a spl i t  a1 ong 

the Myakka River between the Port Charlotte exchanges and the 

'unta Gorda exchanges. And t h i s  - - 
MR. CASEY: Th i rd  a l ternat ive.  

MR. FOLEY: Excuse me, t h i r d  a l ternat ive.  And t h i s  

dould provide a l i f e  o f  approximately seven years f o r  Area "A" 

and about nine years f o r  Area "B" before any addi t ional  r e l i e f  

dould be required, and here i s  the l i n e  shown on a county map. 

s p l i t  t h a t  approximates the - - t h a t  goes between the Punta 

Gorda and north Fort  Myers exchanges i n  Boca Grande i s  t o  the 

north o f  t h i s ,  and i t  approximates the county l i n e  between Lee 

and Char1 o t t e  County. 

The l a s t  a l ternat ive,  A l ternat ive 4, was a geographic 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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The l i f e  o f  t h i s  f o r  Area "A" i s  approximately seven 

years and f o r  Area "B" i s  approximately 10 years. A t  the 

neeting these were the only  four a l ternat ives t h a t  were 

:onsidered. None others were considered by the  industry.  And 

a t  the indust ry  meeting, the  par t i c ipants  reached consensus t o  

recommend A l te rna t ive  1, the a l l  -services d i s t r i b u t e d  overlay 

as the most preferable method t o  provide long-term r e l i e f  f o r  

the 941. 

However, i n  the event, t h a t  the Commission decided 

l o t  t o  go w i t h  an overlay, the industry f e l t  the best 

geographic s p l i t  would be A1 te rna t ive  4. This recommendation 

Mas f i l e d  by NANPA on behalf  o f  the indust ry  September 18th 

Dpeni ng t h i  s docket. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you very much. A t  t h i s  time, 

Me're going t o  proceed t o  a por t ion  o f  our hearing t o  take the 

pub l ic ' s  input.  Your statements w i l l  become a p a r t  o f  the 

formal docket from which w e ' l l  make our decis ion u l t ima te l y  

l a t e r  i n  t h i s  year. So, f o r  t h a t  reason we're going t o  swear 

you i n  and your testimony w i l l  be sworn i n t o  the  record. A t  

t h i s  time, I ' d  l i k e  t o  ask a l l  o f  those who have come t o  

t e s t i f y  t o  stand and ra i se  your r i g h t  hand. 

In t h i s  matter before the F lor ida Publ ic Service 

Commission, do you swear o r  a f f i r m  tha t  the  testimony you're 

about t o  give i s  the t r u t h ,  the whole t r u t h  and nothing but the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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:ruth? 

ALL: I do. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you very much; you may be 

seated. 

As you come up t o  make your statements, we would ask 

IOU t o  come t o  the podium here t o  my l e f t .  And i f  you would, 

)lease s tate your name c l e a r l y  f o r  the record. Mr. E a r l  

)oucher, who i d e n t i f i e d  himself e a r l i e r ,  i s  w i t h  the Of f i ce  o f  

the Pub1 i c  Counsel . They represent the general pub1 i c ,  and he 

vi11 announce you and c a l l  you up i n  order. 

Mr. Poucher. 

MR. POUCHER: Ken E l l i s ,  Golden Gate Chamber o f  

:ommerce. 

KEN ELLIS 

appeared as a witness and, swearing t o  t e l l  the t r u t h ,  

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT STATEMENT 

MR. ELLIS: Gentlemen, t h i s  i s  more on the form o f  a 

question. I have heard the presentation and saw the 

presentation given a moment ago on the various div is ions.  My 

board o f  d i rec to rs  met yesterday afternoon and asked me t o  be 

here t h i s  evening only  t o  ask t h i s  i n  the question form: Can 

the 941 area code be reassigned t o  a smaller geographic area, 

such as C o l l i e r  County and part  o f  Lee and then have a new area 

code fu r ther  north? I f  t h i s  i s  possible, has t h i s  been taken 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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i n t o  consideration? And i f  t h i s  i s  something t h a t  would work, 

t h i s  i s  something t h a t  our people; t h a t  i s ,  j u s t  my board, 

would l i k e  t o  see looked a t  very ca re fu l l y .  I ' m  not here t h i s  

evening t o  propose anything other than merely ask t h a t  

question. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  I ' m  sorry, can I get 

your l a s t  name again? 

MR. ELLIS: E l l i s ,  E - 1 - 1 - i s ,  Ken E l l i s ,  Executive 

Di rector  o f  the Chamber o f  Commerce. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes, Mr. E l l i s .  The short answer 

t o  your question i s  i t  i s  possible - -  i n  f ac t ,  t h a t ' s  exact ly  

what a s p l i t  does i s  i t  takes an e x i s t i n g  code and assigns i t  

t o  a smaller geographic area. 

Now, whether o r  not i t  can be applied t o  the spec i f i c  

area t h a t  you described i s  a whole d i f f e r e n t  story. There are 

guidelines and requirements t h a t  apply t o  the s ize o f  the  areas 

t h a t  w i l l  remain a f t e r  a s p l i t .  It sounds l i k e  - -  and I don ' t  

want t o  speak too f a r  o f f  f i e l d ,  but  i t  sounds l i k e  the area 

t h a t  you're describing would be a b i t  sma l l  t o  assign a whole 

code t o ,  but i f  you would, I would ask you t o  speak w i t h  our 

S t a f f  afterwards, and they can gave you a be t te r  descr ip t ion o f  

what those guidel ines are and how they might apply t o  the  

hypothetical t h a t  you gave me. 

MR. ELLIS: A l l  r i g h t .  I thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  Any other questions? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. ELLIS: No, t h a t ' s  a l l ,  s i r .  Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

MR. ELLIS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You saw the presentation. Did 

I ' m  sorry, I have a question. 

you get a handout when you came i n ?  

MR. ELLIS: Yes, I did.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And they ' re  l a i d  out 

there as we l l .  Have you had the chance t o  look a t  the various 

a1 ternat ives t h a t  are suggested there? 

MR. ELLIS: Just very b r i e f l y .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MR. ELLIS: I guess, the question tha t  i t  r e a l l y  

comes down t o  i s  i f  you keep one complete county and then 

possibly you might even get h a l f  o f  the second county, rather 

than s p l i t t i n g  a county somewhere i n  the middle, i f  you could 

j us t  get - -  i s  i t  possible t o  work w i th in  county l i nes  o r  i s  

that  too small o f  an en t i t y?  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We1 1 , one o f  the proposals, 

basical ly,  i s  t o  s p l i t  the current 941 area a t  the Charlotte 

Zounty/Lee County 1 i ne. 

MR. ELLIS: Which would leave Lee and Co l l i e r  i n  the 

same area code. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It would leave Lee and C o l l i e r  

i n  the same area code and then pa r t  o f  Monroe County. 

MR. ELLIS: I f  t h i s  i s  the  case, I th ink ,  i t ' s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

13 

iomething t h a t  should be pursued very, very vigorously. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: And i n  t h a t  case, Lee and 

Zoll i e r  would be completely i n t a c t ,  Monroe would be spl it. The 

lo r t i on  o f  Monroe tha t  would become pa r t  o f  t ha t  area would not 

include the Keys. 

lonroe County. 

It would be more o f  the ru ra l  par ts  o f  

MR. ELLIS: Well, t h i s  i s  something, I th ink ,  would 

>e looked on very favorably by the business community t h a t  I 

-epresent . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: You agree, then, t h a t  the 

;harlotte/Lee County l i n e  would be a good point  t o  draw tha t  

l ine,  i f  we had to .  

MR. ELLIS: Yes, I th ink ,  so. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Do you have a preference as bo 

s p l i t t i n g  the 941 area code i n t o  two separate area codes? O f  

:ourse, one would have t o  be reassigned a new number or  going 

Mith an overlay tha t  would requi re 1 0 - d i g i t  d ia l i ng ,  which i s  

rJhat they have i n  Dade County r i g h t  now. 

MR. ELLIS: The mechanics o f  what you're speaking 

about probably would escape me. That s not my bag, but as 1 ong 

as the people have almost grown up w i th  941 area code, i f  

t h a t ' s  there, I think,  they could make adjustments t o  go along 

d i t h  tha t ,  even i f  i t  meant d i a l i n g  more d i g i t s .  That would be 

my thought. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. We appreciate 
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;hat. 

MR. ELLIS: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. 

MR. POUCHER: Bleu Wallace. 

BLEU WALLACE 

ippeared as a witness and, swearing t o  t e l l  the  t r u t h ,  

:es t i f ied  as fol lows: 

DIRECT STATEMENT 

Thank you, Commissioners. For the record, Bleu 

I ' m  here ton ight  t o  present the dallace, C o l l i e r  County S t a f f .  

:ommission w i th  a resolut ion,  resolut ion number 2001-184 

3dopted by the C o l l i e r  County Board o f  Commissioners on May the 

?2nd, 2001. And i n  short,  what i t  does i s  i t  supports 

41ternative 4, and i t  fu r ther  supports Area "B" or  the area 

south o f  the Lee CountyKharlotte County l i n e  re ta in ing  area 

code 941. And i f  I may approach, I ' d  be happy t o  present 

copies o f  the resolut ion t o  you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: P1 ease. 

MR. WALLACE: I n  closing, I might add t h a t  upon 

adopting t h i s  resolut ion,  the board was b r ie fed  about a meeting 

that  we had w i th  the C o l l i e r  County s h e r i f f ' s  o f f i c e ,  the 

Naples Chamber o f  Commerce, c i t y  o f  Marco Island, and the 

Col 1 i e r  County Emergency Services . The consensus was c l  ear 

tha t  A l ternat ive 4 was the best a l te rna t ive  and supported by 

those agencies, and t h a t ' s  why the board d i d  adopt t h i s  
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*esolut ion. That 's a l l  I have. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I might ask t h i s  question. There 

i re  - - we've heard a l o t  o f  discussion, and you've indicated i n  

{our resolut ion tha t  you'd l i k e  t o  r e t a i n  941 i n  t h i s  area; o f  

:ourse, the area t o  the north has expressed the s imi la r  

ientiment. Are there pa r t i cu la r  factors or  features o f  your 

:ommunity tha t  you th ink  are more compelling t o  keep the 941 i n  

;his area? 

MR. WALLACE: I th ink ,  because we have a greater 

iopulat ion and would a f f e c t  less people i f  we were t o  r e t a i n  

341. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

MR. WALLACE: And I say tha t  based on census f igures 

and the l i k e .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: And you're r e f e r r i n g  t o  the 

Lee, C o l l i e r ,  Monroe County area has more population than the 

Yanatee, Sarasota, and Char1 o t te?  

MR. WALLACE: That 's what I ' m  advised by our Housing 

and Urban Improvement Department, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. D e f i n i t e l y  check 

on t h a t  population f igure.  We have heard from the other 

counties tha t  they ' re  the larger .  That 's the reason I inqu i re  

i s  they've represented tha t  they have more population. 

MR. WALLACE: I d i d  check tha t  out, and according t o  

our housing and urban mprovement d i rec to r ,  we have the larger  
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population. And he was involved i n  the census f igures and a l l  

t ha t ,  so...  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I j u s t  have a question - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me, Mr. - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: - - no, no, no, no, f o r  our 

S t a f f .  Are we going t o  develop population f igures as pa r t  o f  

the evidentiary record i n  t h i s  case? I s  t h a t  something we're 

going t o  do? 

MS. BANKS: We can put those i n .  We do have those 

f i gures a1 ready. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So, a t  the evident iary 

hearing we can get those numbers i n t o  the record whatever they 

are? 

MS. BANKS: Yes, s i r ,  we can. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, thank you. 

MR. POUCHER: Dawn Jantsch. 

DAWN JANTSCH 

appeared as a witness and, swearing t o  t e l l  the t ru th ,  

t e s t i f i e d  as fol lows: 

DIRECT STATEMENT 

MS. JANTSCH: Good evening, gentlemen. Dawn Jantsch 

representing the Naples area Chamber o f  Commerce, a business 

organization o f  1,500 businesses i n  C o l l i e r  County. We 
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represent businesses not just i n  Naples, but  we are the Naples 
area chamber, so we also represent businesses i n  Golden Gate, 
we have represented businesses i n  Marco. We are the largest 
business organization i n  Florida - - i n  southwest Florida, 
excuse me, and we're named 22nd i n  the state i n  size by 

"Florida Trend" magazine recently i n  February. 
We, too,  represent t h a t  Area "B" and Alternative 4 

are the ones t h a t  are chosen and, of course, asking for Area 
"B" t o  remain i n  the 941 area code. 
figures recently pu t  us a t  251,000. 

Collier County should be considered along w i t h  Lee County as 
the area t h a t  should retain t h a t  area code. 

I believe, our census 
I do have a reason why 

We have an extremely, extremely large tourism 
presence. As you know, much of our population i s  a lso 
temporary or seasonal , as we like t o  call them, bu t  so much o f  

our growth has been i n  tourism area. Naples and Collier County 

are known throughout the international community, not just 
through the United States, bu t  internationally as being part o f  

southwest Florida as having t h a t  941 area code changing. 
I t  would be devastating t o  the business community 

and, indeed, t o  the residents t o  have t o  change the area code 
dhen i t  is  so long and so well known as 941. So, I do hope 
t h a t  you will take t h a t  i n to  consideration, because our tourism 
community is  very large t o  us and is our most important 
industry i n  this arena. Thank you so much. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  sorry, I have a quick 

question. This i s  a hypothetical,  okay? 

MS. JANTSCH: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Assume tha t  the southern 

counties, C o l l i e r ,  Lee, and Monroe have t o  have the new area 

code, do you s t i l l  support s p l i t t i n g  as opposed t o  an overlay? 

MS. JANTSCH: My board o f  d i rec to rs  took a stand on 

the s p l i t  as opposed t o  the overlay, so I cannot speak against 

t ha t .  We d i d  completely support A l ternat ive 4 w i th  area code 

- -  w i th  the area code 941 re ta in ing  i n  Section "B."  I th ink  

tha t  was a natural f o r  the Naples area chamber. I w i l l  t e l l  

you tha t  I was i n  a metroplex area t h a t  d i d  have the overlay, 

and I can speak from personal experience, the overlay i s  a very 

d i f f i c u l t  t h ing  t o  deploy. 

That means tha t  residents can have two d i f f e r e n t  

phone numbers i n  t h e i r  home. When you add a teenage l i n e ,  you 

wind up w i th  two d i f f e r e n t  phone numbers. When you do t h a t  f o r  

a business, you could wind up w i t h  a business having one fax 

l i n e  w i th  a 941 area code and one fax l i n e  w i th  the new area 

code. It becomes very confusing f o r  everyone, so I would 

h igh ly  recommend tha t  we maintain Al ternat ive 4 w i th  Section B 

remaining i n  the 941 area. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : But you do understand t h a t  

under Al ternat ive 4, the s ix-county area w i l l  be s p l i t  and 
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there w i l l  be three counties tha t  w i l l  be disappointed t h a t  

they do not have t h e i r  same area code. I s  there anything we 

:an do or  any advice you can g ive us t o  soften the blow t o  

those customers tha t  w i l l  have t h e i r  area code changed? 

MS. JANTSCH: I wish I could. That w i l l  take a very 

large pub l ic  re la t ions  e f f o r t .  

large tourism area we do have a strong concern about los ing  the 

341 area code. That 's an awful l o t  o f  long-distance phone 

za l l s  ge t t i ng  a funny signal when they d ia l  941 numbers a f t e r  

they've changed. 

I do know t h a t  representing a 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you very much. 

MS. JANTSCH: Thank you. 

MR. POUCHER: Jack Pointer. 

JACK POINTER 

appeared as a witness and, swearing t o  t e l l  the  t r u t h ,  

t e s t i f i e d  as fol lows: 

DIRECT STATEMENT 

MR. POINTER: Good evening, Commissioners. My name 

i s  Jack Pointer. I l i v e  i n  nor th  Naples. I have been here f o r  

15 years. I support the A l te rna t ive  4, and what the 

Comm 

For t  

Col 1 

ssioners o f  the C o l l i e r  County Commission has proposed. 

I n  t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  area we have one a i r p o r t  up a t  

Myers, which serves the e n t i r e  area o f  Lee County and 

e r  County and several others. There's about f i v e  m i l l i o n  

passengers t h a t  come i n  a year; two m i l l i o n  come t o  C o l l i e r  
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Lounty, two m i l l i o n  come t o  Lee County, and the other m i l l i o n  

go elsewhere i n  the area o f  the 941 area. 

Down here, we have about - - i n  Col l  i e r  County, we 

have about 250,000 population. We are growing a t  the r a t e  o f  

one per hour o r  10,000 people per year, so a year from now we 

A l l  have somewhere i n  the neighbored o f  another 10,000 people 

and 10 years from now w e ' l l  have another 100,000 people added 

on t o  C o l l i e r  County. 

C o l l i e r  County has an ad valorem value, a t  the 

present time, o f  roughly 35 b i l l i o n s  o f  do l la rs .  One year from 

now i t  w i l l  be 40 b i l l i o n s  o f  do l la rs ,  so i t  i s  growing a t  a 

very rap id  r a t e  and speed. According t o  our newspaper 

recent ly,  we are the second-fastest growing area i n  the United 

States, on ly  second t o  the Las Vegas area, so I am much i n  

favor o f  keeping 941 i n  our area. 

I l i k e  t o  d i a l  7 d i g i t s .  And because I ' m  j u s t  a l i t t l e  slower 

being a l i t t l e  older. Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. 

MR. POUCHER: David Metcal fe .  

DAVID METCALFE 

I want t o  avoid 10 d i g i t s .  

appeared as a witness and, swearing t o  t e l l  the t r u t h ,  

t e s t i f i e d  as fol lows: 
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DIRECT STATEMENT 

MR. METCALFE: Gentlemen, my name is David Metcalfe. 
I apprec ate your attention this evening. I cannot t h i n k  of an 
issue of more concern t o  me as a business owner t h a n  this issue 
tonight.  And the reason for t h a t  is  I own an alarm company. 
de have a l l  these alarms programmed t o  d i a l  a local number 
dhich then line swings t o  our central s ta t ion .  

I f  there was an area code split i n  this area, 
regardless o f  the area code, and I do favor the county 
resolution, bu t  even i f  we d i d  not get 941, we would not have 
t o  go out and program thousands of alarm panels, security 
panels, f i re  alarm panels t h a t  have been out  there for years 
t h a t  would require, i n  many cases, a personal visit from a 
technician t o  accomplish this 1 0 - d i g i t  d i a l i n g .  

In fact, i t  could very easily put  a l o t  of people 
of business i n  the alarm industry, because f i r s t  of a l l ,  we 
a t  the second fastest-growing county i n  the nat ion and we a 

out 
re 
so 
S are a t  fu l l  employment. We d o n ' t  have the manpower t o  do t h  

because of the growth, t o  go out and do a l l  these alarms and 

reprogram them a l l .  The 1 0 - d i g i t  overlay would be 
catastrophic. 

Besides t h a t ,  we're advancing i n  technology. We have 
leading-edge technology i n  the alarm industry. 
t h a t  1 0 - d i g i t  d i a l i n g  i s  going backwards, instead of forward. 
There has t o  be an area code spl i t ,  i n  my opinion, for us t o  

I t  seems t o  me 
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iurvi ve. 
Secondly - -  or thirdly, we d o n ' t  have the time, from 

/ha t  they've pu t  on the screen, t o  be able t o  accomplish a l l  

;hese changes. We've got less t h a n  two years t o  do this. I f  

,e had a spli t  and we could see down the horizon i n  ten years 
)r six years or eight years, whatever they portrayed when t h a t  
iould run ou t  t h a t  we would need t o  do something else, then a l l  

:he new panels t h a t  we install from this day forward are 
:apable of having a second phone number programmed i n  them. 
h d  we could program i n  another number or another area code i f  

de knew ahead of time t o  be able t o  do this ,  and then we 
, ~ o u l d n ' t  have t o  go out and do i t  individual ly  after the fact. 
50, I ,  aga in ,  support the county resolution for Alternate 4. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I want you t o  know t h a t  we 
qeard from an alarm business owner yesterday i n  Sarasota 
:ounty, and your testimony is exactly consistent w i t h  w h a t  we 
heard from him as well. 

MR. METCALFE: Thank you. I a lso have spoken t o  an 
alarm owner on the east coast t h a t  is  r igh t  now facing this 
1 0 - d i g i t  d i a l i n g  problem, and he has thousands of accounts. I 

have several thousand. And he doesn't know how he's going t o  
be able t o  do i t .  His time is  running o u t ,  and he doesn't have 
the people t o  do this. I t ' s  a problem, and i t ' s  going t o  be a 
public service problem, specifically, when you're dealing w i t h  

f i re  alarms. And a l o t  of f i re  alarms have been out  there for 
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years t h a t  can ' t  be programmed from a computer, so t h i s  would 

be a problem. And I support t r y i n g  t o  keep 941, but as a 

former Sarasota resident, I can l i v e  w i t h  another area code, 

but I don' t  th ink  we can survive, i n  my industry,  the 1 0 - d i g i t  

overlay. So, thank you f o r  your a t tent ion.  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you, Mr. Metcal fe. 

MR. POUCHER: Mr. Chairman, we would l i k e  t o  

recognize Becky Kokkinos. I s  she here? I f  you'd stand, she's 

the Legis la t ive Assistant f o r  Senator Saunders o f f i ce .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you very much. 

MR. POUCHER: Did we miss any witnesses tha t  have not 

been c a l l  ed? That concl udes the witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. I f  there 's  someone who d i d  

not t e s t i f y ,  but you do have comments you'd l i k e  fo r  us t o  

consider, you do have the option o f  submitting wr i t t en  comments 

t o  the Commission t h a t  can be considered. There's information 

i n  the back t h a t  you can - -  contact information fo r  t h a t  

purpose. 

I f  there i s  no one else who'd l i k e  t o  t e s t i f y  t h i s  

I want t o  thank you a l l  evening, t ha t  concludes our hearing. 

f o r  coming out. Your comments, as I indicated, w i l l  be used as 

a pa r t  o f  our del iberat ions.  You can monitor the progress o f  

t h i s  docket on the In ternet  a t  www.floridapsc.com. And i f  

there 's  any other information you need, you can t a l k  w i t h  our 
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t a f f .  I f  there 's  nothing else t o  come before us t h i s  evening, 

hank you, and t h i s  hearing i s  adjourned. 

(Hearing concluded a t  6:40 p.m. 1 
- - - - -  
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